
Sequoia Union Board of Trustees Special Board Meeting
July 22, 2021 at 6:00 p.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of the Sequoia Union Elementary School will be held at 23958 Avenue 324,

Lemon Cove, CA. Please note those in attendance will need to follow physical distancing and wear a

mask.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to access the

Board meeting room, to access written documents being discussed at the Board meeting, or to otherwise

participate at Board meetings, please contact the school office at (559) 564-2106 for assistance.

Notification at least 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements

to ensure accessibility to the Board meeting and to provide any required accommodations, auxiliary aids or

services.

Documents provided to a majority of the Governing Board regarding an open session item on this agenda

will be made available for public inspection in the District office located at 23958 Ave. 324, Lemon Cove,

California during normal business hours and on the website at https://www.sequoiaunion.org/

1. CALL TO ORDER at 6:00 pm

2. FLAG SALUTE

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

4. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

Board Policy #9323 allows each individual speaker three minutes for public comment. The public

may choose to address the board on any non agenda item at this time, or on an agendized item at

this time or at the time of the items discussion. Before making a comment, please gain recognition

from the Chair and direct your comments through the Chair. Due to COVID-19, if you wish to

submit a comment virtually you may do so online at https://bit.ly/SUpubliccomment. Comments

must be submitted one hour prior to the scheduled meeting opening to ensure they will be read.

The same requirements relating to the three minute limit apply to written comments also.

Comments submitted after the opening of the meeting, but before adjournment will be recorded in

the minutes.

5. DISCUSSION & REPORTS

5.1 California Department of Public Health UPDATE on Student Mask Mandates and

Guidance for K-12 Public Schools in the 2021-2022 School Year

5.2 Face Mask Protocols

https://www.sequoiaunion.org/
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kPzd3DjbkVj9CFB-urGQTZtl2pZfTpTB/view?usp=sharing
https://bit.ly/SUpubliccomment
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AcNVEHGNu58W1YtpaxAKrl2CunFupRD3/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1qSgIgPpU4Ks2Yfh182o-MjCKd5yPz_hk/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1qSgIgPpU4Ks2Yfh182o-MjCKd5yPz_hk/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1N56VWxp7VfB-GLmiKMWB-PlBnHQQ_0AZ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1993XbBO8GeBcMym0CvcFtDuywxke7txh/view?usp=sharing


5.3 Report on AB104: Student Retention

5.4 Report on Expanded Learning Opportunities Program

5.5 Report on Universal Transitional Kindergarten

6. ACTION ITEMS

6.1 Revision to the 2021-2022 Sequoia Union Elementary School District and Charter Budget

6.2 Approve Contract for Sherri Rocha-Consultant for Budget and Fiscal Support for the

Business Department

6.3 Approve the 2019-2020 Outstanding District Credit Card Statement

6.4 Approve Waiving the normal policy of 3 reads in order to approve an emergency Board

Policy Change

7. PUBLIC HEARING

7.1 Public Hearing on Board Policy 6158.1 and Administrative Regulation 6158.1 regarding

Independent Study for the 2021-2022 school year pursuant to AB 130

8. ACTION ITEMS

8.1 Discussion, Consideration and Possible Adoption of Revised Board Policy 6158.1 and

Administrative Regulation 6158.1

9. ORGANIZATIONAL BUSINESS

9.1 Consideration of Agenda Items the Board Wishes to Discuss in Future Meetings

10. CLOSED SESSION

10.1 GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957.6:CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR

AGENCY REPRESENTATIVE: District’s Legal Counsel. EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION: S.E.T.A.,

UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES: Sequoia Union Classified Staff.

11. ACTION ITEMS

11.1 Action to Approve Public Statement Regarding Face Mask Mandate

12. ADJOURNMENT

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1V-hGIP30aKtmZLGRqKIarkDguFH76A4t/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/13ThZ9BxPWf97xXTVn0_JVdqURLIxM0Ln/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gd4h23XDQ6UXBxElQTgRU4cv0PbIYSM_/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/19NabHT6ZJARkisv2ZXNFKatzJ4KJkr2n/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1CoE90VxTK6u7B76M83GA3OJUQodjwAhP/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/123IUR1CWYcvMjLjC7WFEuZwZ97KGsS9j/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/12o_3lxKpnhVPQz97Ijr9AQ3BlskgLU4J/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mWT_jF_O7WYGRcNVnFitvw2MgRnMZJKi/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1riVrYC2ApjBo-CFYKdshbaECyHMyL99A/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1M4WlsPpeoOPS-kmJ1qR2__Q65qCm61cQ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1M4WlsPpeoOPS-kmJ1qR2__Q65qCm61cQ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ahtgH2Ql5l5we6L11ibtu45vl0v0MzGQ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1rMknJn4ITHCQZbOZ0_ZG0Cc6E9xVRLCt/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NPU1jRs7l4Y41N-ihczOvUvjlQiVdIAa/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gXe6PRz-94dlCe4trQ-I2f_laaN2BC76/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gXe6PRz-94dlCe4trQ-I2f_laaN2BC76/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1hre8o_zk8tFnJDUGh59W15_fzO2vw03B/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1bh8caReLWNJrNftyxfLSQq0z5dh1Y7uG/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1vrV69bfBfRiDlJShsy4xQRz1gJNfoy_8/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1L9yXoNY4__43YKpGJFRle6k7X7-RoQbu/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/143DFQ3dZScGApISVKo2Zes06aC68RmVD/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1yW1VQpKveJ4qG4jPdWMGRp7OABK5CBVD/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1yW1VQpKveJ4qG4jPdWMGRp7OABK5CBVD/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1TeZiwgXlJw79njjo8gsQ8XxwE5mlLyDb/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1MG-wqSmgziWh2hjxdKZAm9ETdVjWJI1t/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1MG-wqSmgziWh2hjxdKZAm9ETdVjWJI1t/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1MG-wqSmgziWh2hjxdKZAm9ETdVjWJI1t/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1JX6-io5T0bcpZ8_LDNZYNFniD8jnoeJd/view?usp=sharing


 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION & REPORTS: 5.1 California Department of Public Health UPDATE on Student Mask 
Mandates and Guidance for K-12 Public Schools in the 2021-2022 School Year 
 

 In the July 13th update from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH)  
 Student Face Masks 

o Optional outdoors. 
o K-12 students are required to mask indoors, except if they meet face mask exemptions per existing face 

mask guidance. 
o Adults in K-12 school settings are required to mask indoors when sharing indoor spaces with students 

regardless of vaccination status. 
o Schools must exclude students from campus (not just placing them outdoors) if they are not exempt and 

refuse to wear a face covering. 
 Schools should offer alternative educational opportunities for students who are excluded from 

campus because they will not wear a face covering. (See Agenda Item 5.2)  
 CDPH will continue to assess conditions on an ongoing basis, and will determine no later than 

November 1, 2021, whether to update mask requirements or recommendations. 
 

 Physical Distancing: Recent evidence indicates that in-person instruction can occur safely 
without minimum physical distancing requirements when other mitigation strategies (e.g., masking) 
are implemented. 

 
 
 
 

 

 



 COVID-19 Home 
 Protect Your Health 
 Get Latest Guidance 
 See the Numbers 
 Learn More 

 
TOMÁS J. ARAGÓN, M.D., Dr.P.H. 

State Public Health Officer & Director 

 
GAVIN NEWSOM 

Governor 

State of California—Health and Human Services Agency 
California Department of Public Health 

 

 

July 12, 2021 

 

 

 

TO: 

All Californians 

 

SUBJECT: 

COVID-19 Public Health Guidance for K-12 Schools in California, 2021-22 School Year 

 

 

 

Related Materials:  CDPH Guidance for the Use of Face Coverings | Safe Schools for All 

Hub | K-12 Schools Testing Framework 2021-2022  

 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/Immunization/nCoV2019.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/K-12-Guidance-2021-22-School-Year.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/K-12-Guidance-2021-22-School-Year.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/K-12-Guidance-2021-22-School-Year.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/K-12-Guidance-2021-22-School-Year.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/guidance-for-face-coverings.aspx
https://schools.covid19.ca.gov/
https://schools.covid19.ca.gov/
https://testing.covid19.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/332/2021/07/School-Testing-Considerations.pdf


On July 9, 2021, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) published 

its updated recommendations for K-12 schools. The following guidance applies CDC’s 

recommendations to the California context, in order to help K-12 schools formulate and 

implement plans for safe, successful, and full in-person instruction in the 2021-22 school year. 

This guidance is effective immediately and will be reviewed regularly by the California 

Department of Public Health (CDPH).  

The foundational principle of this guidance is that all students must have access to safe and 

full in-person instruction and to as much instructional time as possible. In California, the 

surest path to safe and full in-person instruction at the outset of the school year, as well as 

minimizing missed school days in an ongoing basis, is a strong emphasis on the following: 

vaccination for all eligible individuals to get COVID-19 rates down throughout the community; 

universal masking in schools, which enables no minimum physical distancing, allowing all 

students access to full in-person learning, and more targeted quarantine practices, keeping 

students in school; and access to a robust COVID-19 testing program as an available additional 

safety layer. Recent evidence indicates that in-person instruction can occur safely without 

minimum physical distancing requirements when other mitigation strategies (e.g., masking) are 

fully implemented.  This is consistent with CDC K-12 School Guidance. 

Masks are one of the most effective and simplest safety mitigation layers to prevent in-school 

transmission of COVID-19 infections and to support full time in-person instruction in K-12 

schools. SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19, is transmitted primarily by aerosols 

(airborne transmission), and less frequently by droplets. Physical distancing is generally used to 

reduce only droplet transmission, whereas masks are one of the most effective measures for 

source control of both aerosols and droplets. Therefore, masks best promote both safety and in-

person learning by reducing the need for physical distancing. Additionally, under the new 

guidance from the CDC, universal masking also permits modified quarantine practices under 

certain conditions in K-12 settings, further promoting more instructional time for students.   

Finally, this approach takes into account a number of key considerations: current unknowns 

associated with variants and in particular the Delta Variant, which is more transmissible; 

operational barriers of tracking vaccination status in order to monitor and enforce mask wearing; 

and potential detrimental effects on students of differential mask policies. Detrimental effects of 

differential mask policies include: potential stigma, bullying, isolation of vaccinated OR 

unvaccinated students, depending on the culture and attitudes in the school or surrounding 

community.   

CDPH will continue to assess conditions on an ongoing basis, and will determine no later 

than November 1, 2021, whether to update mask requirements or 

recommendations. Indicators, conditions, and science review will include vaccination coverage 

status, in consideration of whether vaccines are available for children under 12, community case 

and hospitalization rates, outbreaks, and ongoing vaccine effectiveness against circulating 

variants of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19 in alignment with the CDC-

recommended indicators to guide K-12 school operations.  

This guidance is designed to enable all schools to offer and provide full in-person instruction to 

all students safely, consistent with the current scientific evidence about COVID-19, even if 

pandemic dynamics shift throughout the school year, affected by vaccination rates and the 

potential emergence of viral variants.  

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html#anchor_1625661984621
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html#anchor_1625661984621


This guidance includes mandatory requirements, in addition to recommendations and resources 

to inform decision-making. Implementation requires training and support for staff and adequate 

consideration of student and family needs. Stricter guidance may be issued by local public health 

officials or other authorities. 

COVID-19 vaccination is strongly recommended for all eligible people in California, 

including teachers, staff, students, and adults sharing homes with these members of our K-

12 communities. See CDC recommendations about how to promote vaccine access and uptake 

for schools. Additional California-specific vaccine access information is available on the Safe 

Schools Hub and Vaccinate All 58 – Let’s Get to Immunity. 

In workplaces, employers are subject to the Cal/OSHA COVID-19 Emergency Temporary 

Standards (ETS) or in some workplaces the CalOSHA Aerosol Transmissible Diseases Standard, 

and should consult those regulations for additional applicable requirements.  

General Considerations: 

Consideration should be given to both the direct school population as well as the surrounding 

community. The primary factors to consider include: 1) level of community transmission of 

COVID-19; 2) COVID-19 vaccination coverage in the community and among students, faculty, 

and staff; and 3) any local COVID-19 outbreaks or increasing trends. Discussion of these factors 

should occur in collaboration with local or state public health partners.   

As the CDC explained in its July 9, 2021 Guidance: 

“Schools will have a mixed population of both people who are fully vaccinated and 

people who are not fully vaccinated. . . These variations require K-12 administrators to 

make decisions about the use of COVID-19 prevention strategies in their schools to 

protect people who are not fully vaccinated. . . Together with local public health officials, 

school administrators should consider multiple factors when they make decisions about 

implementing layered prevention strategies against COVID-19.”  

In an effort to streamline and tailor this decision-making process for the California context, 

guidance regarding each of the measures that can be used in a layered prevention strategy is 

provided below.   

Safety Measures for K-12 Schools 

1. Masks  

a. Masks are optional outdoors for all in K-12 school settings. 

b. K-12 students are required to mask indoors, with exemptions per CDPH face mask 

guidance.   Adults in K-12 school settings are required to mask when sharing indoor spaces 

with students.   

c. Persons exempted from wearing a face covering due to a medical condition, must wear a 

non-restrictive alternative, such as a face shield with a drape on the bottom edge, as long as 

their condition permits it. 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html#anchor_1625661984621
https://schools.covid19.ca.gov/
https://schools.covid19.ca.gov/
https://www.vaccinateall58.com/
https://covid.cdc.gov/covid-data-tracker/#vaccinations-county-view
https://covid19.ca.gov/vaccination-progress-data/
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/guidance-for-face-coverings.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/guidance-for-face-coverings.aspx


d. Schools must develop and implement local protocols to provide a face covering to students 

who inadvertently fail to bring a face covering to school to prevent unnecessary exclusions. 

e. Consistent with guidance from the 2020-21 school year, schools must develop and 

implement local protocols to enforce the mask requirements. Additionally, schools should offer 

alternative educational opportunities for students who are excluded from campus because they 

will not wear a face covering. Note: Public schools should be aware of the requirements in AB 

130 to offer independent study programs for the 2021-22 school year.  

f. In limited situations where a face covering cannot be used for pedagogical or developmental 

reasons, (e.g., communicating or assisting young children or those with special needs) a face 

shield with a drape (per CDPH guidelines) can be used instead of a face covering while in the 

classroom as long as the wearer maintains physical distance from others. Staff must return to 

wearing a face covering outside of the classroom.  

2. Physical distancing  

a. Recent evidence indicates that in-person instruction can occur safely without minimum 

physical distancing requirements when other mitigation strategies (e.g., masking) are 

implemented.  This is consistent with CDC K-12 School Guidance. 

3. Ventilation recommendations:  

a. For indoor spaces, ventilation should be optimized, which can be done by following CDPH 

Guidance on Ventilation of Indoor Environments and Ventilation and Filtration to Reduce 

Long-Range Airborne Transmission of COVID-19 and Other Respiratory Infections: 

Considerations for Reopened Schools.  

4. Recommendations for staying home when sick and getting tested: 

a. Follow the strategy for Staying Home when Sick and Getting Tested from the CDC. 

b. Getting tested for COVID-19 when symptoms are consistent with COVID-19 will help with 

rapid contact tracing and prevent possible spread at schools. 

c. Advise staff members and students with symptoms of COVID-19 infection not to return for 

in-person instruction until they have met CDPH criteria to return to school for those with 

symptoms: 

i. At least 24 hours have passed since resolution of fever without the use of fever-

reducing medications; and 

ii. Other symptoms have improved; and 

iii. They have a negative test for SARS-CoV-2, OR a healthcare provider has 

provided documentation that the symptoms are typical of their underlying chronic 

condition (e.g., allergies or asthma) OR a healthcare provider has confirmed an 

alternative named diagnosis (e.g., Streptococcal pharyngitis, Coxsackie virus), OR 

at least 10 days have passed since symptom onset. 

5. Screening testing recommendations: 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CCDPHP/DEODC/EHLB/IAQ/Pages/Airborne-Diseases.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CCDPHP/DEODC/EHLB/IAQ/Pages/Airborne-Diseases.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CCDPHP/DEODC/EHLB/IAQ/Pages/Airborne-Diseases.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CCDPHP/DEODC/EHLB/IAQ/Pages/Airborne-Diseases.aspx
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html#anchor_1625661984621
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html


a. CDPH has a robust State- and Federally-funded school testing program and subject matter 

experts available to support school decision making, including free testing resources to support 

screening testing programs (software, test kits, shipping, testing, etc.).  

i. Resources for schools interested in testing include: California’s Testing Task 

Force K-12 Schools Testing Program and K-12 school-based COVID-19 testing 

strategies;  The Safe Schools for All state technical assistance (TA) portal; and 

the CDC K-12 School Guidance screening testing considerations (in Section 1.4 

and Appendix 2) that are specific to the school setting. 

6. Case reporting, contact tracing and investigation 

a. Per AB 86 (2021) and California Code Title 17, section 2500, schools are required to report 

COVID-19 cases to the local public health department. 

b. Schools or LEAs should have a COVID-19 liaison to assist the local health department with 

contact tracing and investigation.   

7. Quarantine recommendations for vaccinated close contacts 

a. For those who are vaccinated, follow the  CDPH Fully Vaccinated People 

Guidance regarding quarantine.  

8. Quarantine recommendations for unvaccinated students for exposures when both parties were 

wearing a mask, as required in K-12 indoor settings. These are adapted from the CDC K-12 

guidance and CDC definition of a close contact.   

a. When both parties were wearing a mask in the indoor classroom setting, unvaccinated 

students who are close contacts (more than 15 minutes over a 24-hour period within 0-6 feet 

indoors) may undergo a modified 10-day quarantine as follows. They may continue to attend 

school for in-person instruction if they: 

i. Are asymptomatic;  

ii. Continue to appropriately mask, as required; 

iii. Undergo at least twice weekly testing during the 10-day quarantine; and 

iv. Continue to quarantine for all extracurricular activities at school, including 

sports, and activities within the community setting.  

9. Quarantine recommendations for: unvaccinated close contacts who were not wearing masks or 

for whom the infected individual was not wearing a mask during the indoor exposure; or 

unvaccinated students as described in #8 above.  

a. For these contacts, those who remain asymptomatic, meaning they have NOT had any 

symptoms, may discontinue self-quarantine under the following conditions: 

i. Quarantine can end after Day 10 from the date of last exposure without testing; 

OR 

https://testing.covid19.ca.gov/school-testing/
https://caschoolsopening.powerappsportals.us/en-US/incident-report/
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html#anchor_1625661984621
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/COVID-19-Public-Health-Recommendations-for-Fully-Vaccinated-People.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/COVID-19-Public-Health-Recommendations-for-Fully-Vaccinated-People.aspx
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html#anchor_1625661984621
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html#anchor_1625661984621
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/contact-tracing/contact-tracing-plan/appendix.html#contact
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/COVID-19-Quarantine.aspx


ii. Quarantine can end after Day 7 if a diagnostic specimen is collected after Day 5 

from the date of last exposure and tests negative. 

b. To discontinue quarantine before 14 days following last known exposure, asymptomatic 

close contacts must: 

i. Continue daily self-monitoring for symptoms through Day 14 from last known 

exposure; AND 

ii. Follow all recommended non-pharmaceutical interventions (e.g., wearing a 

mask when around others, hand washing, avoiding crowds) through Day 14 from 

last known exposure. 

c. If any symptoms develop during this 14-day period, the exposed person must immediately 

isolate, get tested and contact their healthcare provider with any questions regarding their care. 

10. Isolation recommendations 

a. For both vaccinated and unvaccinated persons, follow the CDPH Isolation Guidance for 

those diagnosed with COVID-19.  

11. Hand hygiene recommendations 

a. Teach and reinforce washing hands, avoiding contact with one's eyes, nose, and mouth, and 

covering coughs and sneezes among students and staff. 

b. Promote hand washing throughout the day, especially before and after eating, after using the 

toilet, and after handling garbage, or removing gloves. 

c. Ensure adequate supplies to support healthy hygiene behaviors, including soap, tissues, no-

touch trashcans, face coverings, and hand sanitizers with at least 60 percent ethyl alcohol for 

staff and children who can safely use hand sanitizer. 

12. Cleaning recommendations 

a. In general, cleaning once a day is usually enough to sufficiently remove potential virus that 

may be on surfaces. Disinfecting (using disinfectants on the U.S. Environmental Protection 

Agency COVID-19 list) removes any remaining germs on surfaces, which further reduces any 

risk of spreading infection. 

b. For more information on cleaning a facility regularly, when to clean more frequently or 

disinfect, cleaning a facility when someone is sick, safe storage of cleaning and disinfecting 

products, and considerations for protecting workers who clean facilities, see Cleaning and 

Disinfecting Your Facility. 

c. If a facility has had a sick person with COVID-19 within the last 24 hours, clean AND 

disinfect the spaces occupied by that person during that time. 

13. Food service recommendations 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Guidance-on-Isolation-and-Quarantine-for-COVID-19-Contact-Tracing.aspx
https://www.epa.gov/coronavirus/about-list-n-disinfectants-coronavirus-covid-19-0
https://www.epa.gov/coronavirus/about-list-n-disinfectants-coronavirus-covid-19-0
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/disinfecting-building-facility.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/disinfecting-building-facility.html


a. Maximize physical distance as much as possible while eating (especially indoors). Using 

additional spaces outside of the cafeteria for mealtime seating such as classrooms or the 

gymnasium can help facilitate distancing. Arrange for eating outdoors as much as feasible.  

b. Clean frequently touched surfaces. Surfaces that come in contact with food should be 

washed, rinsed, and sanitized before and after meals. 

c. Given very low risk of transmission from surfaces and shared objects, there is no need to 

limit food service approaches to single use items and packaged meals. 

14. Vaccination verification considerations 

a. To inform implementation of prevention strategies that vary by vaccination status (testing, 

contact tracing efforts, and quarantine and isolation practices), refer to the CDC vaccine 

verification recommendations.  

15. COVID-19 Safety Planning Transparency Recommendations 

a. In order to build trust in the school community and support successful return to school, it is 

a best practice to provide transparency to the school community regarding the school’s safety 

plans. It is recommended that at a minimum all local educational agencies (LEAs) post a safety 

plan, communicating the safety measures in place for 2021-22, on the LEA’s website and at 

schools, and disseminate to families in advance of the start of the school year.  

Note: With the approval of the federal American Rescue Plan, each local educational agency 

receiving Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ARP ESSER) funds is 

required to adopt a Safe Return to In-Person Instruction and Continuity of Services Plan and 

review it at least every six months for possible revisions. The plan must describe how the local 

educational agency will maintain the health and safety of students, educators and other staff. 

Reference the Elementary and Secondary School Relief Fund (ESSER III) Safe Return to In-

Person Instruction Local Educational Agency Plan Template. 

Additional considerations or other populations 

1. Disabilities or other health care needs recommendations 

a. When implementing this guidance, schools should carefully consider how to address the 

legal requirements related to provision of a free appropriate public education and requirements 

to reasonably accommodate disabilities, which continue to apply.    

b. Refer to the CDC K-12 guidance section on “Disabilities or other health care needs” for 

additional recommendations. 

2. Visitor recommendations 

a. Schools should review their rules for visitors and family engagement activities. 

b. Schools should limit nonessential visitors, volunteers, and activities involving external 

groups or organizations with people who are not fully vaccinated, particularly in areas where 

there is moderate-to-high COVID-19 community transmission. 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html#anchor_1625662083743
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html#anchor_1625662083743
https://globalepidemics.org/2020/12/18/schools-and-the-path-to-zero-strategies-for-pandemic-resilience-in-the-face-of-high-community-spread/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/documents/returnplantemplate.pdf
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/documents/returnplantemplate.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html#anchor_1625662037558


c. Schools should not limit access for direct service providers, but can ensure compliance with 

school visitor polices. 

d. Schools should continue to emphasize the importance of staying home when sick. Anyone, 

including visitors, who have symptoms of infectious illness, such as flu or COVID-19, should 

stay home and seek testing and care. 

3. Boarding schools may operate residential components under the following guidance: 

a. COVID-19 vaccination is strongly recommended for all eligible people in California, 

including teachers, staff, students, and adults sharing homes with these members of our 

K-12 communities. See CDC recommendations about how to promote vaccine access and 

uptake for schools. Additional California-specific vaccine access information is available on 

the Safe Schools Hub.  

b. Strongly recommend policies and practices to ensure that all eligible students, faculty and 

staff have ample opportunity to become fully vaccinated. 

c. Strongly recommend that unvaccinated students and staff be offered regular COVID-19 

screening testing.  

d. Consider students living in multi-student rooms as a “household cohort.” Household cohort 

members, regardless of vaccination status, do not need to wear masks or physically distance 

when they are together without non-household cohort members nearby. If different “household 

cohorts” are using shared indoor when together during the day or night, continue to monitor 

and enforce mask use, and healthy hygiene behaviors for everyone. 

The non-residential components of boarding schools (e.g., in-person instruction for day 

students) are governed by the guidelines as other K-12 schools, as noted in this document.  

4. Additional information about how this guidance applies to other supervised settings for K-12 

school-aged children and youth (including activities such as band, drama) is 

forthcoming.  Childcare settings and providers remain subject to separate guidance.  

 
 

 
California Department of Public Health 

PO Box, 997377, MS 0500, Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 

Department Website (cdph.ca.gov) 

 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/k-12-guidance.html#anchor_1625661984621
https://schools.covid19.ca.gov/
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Child-Care-Guidance.aspx
http://cdph.ca.gov/


 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION & REPORTS: 5.2 Face Mask Protocols 
 
In the July 13th update from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) the State puts the burden on LEAs 
(Districts) to create protocols for dealing with face mask non-compliance in two sections from their update: 
  

Section d. Schools must develop and implement local protocols to provide a face covering to students who 
inadvertently fail to bring a face covering to school to prevent unnecessary exclusions. 
  
Section e. Consistent with guidance from the 2020-21 school year, schools must develop and implement local 
protocols to enforce the mask requirements. Additionally, schools should offer alternative educational opportunities 
for students who are excluded from campus because they will not wear a face covering. Note: Public schools 
should be aware of the requirements in AB 130 to offer independent study programs for the 2021-22 school year. 

 
 
 

 

 



Page 1 of 2 

Matrix of Educator Responses to Student Non-Compliance with COVID-19 Face Covering Precautions 

Rule: Students in grades K-12 are required to wear a face covering while indoors at school by the 

California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) and on school transportation by the Centers for 

Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”) to help minimize the spread of COVID-19.  Schools are also 

required to develop protocols to address students who refuse to wear a face covering and are not 

exempt from doing so. 

Written notification will be made at the start of the school year to all parents/guardians of the face 

covering requirements and to explain the offer of other alternative educational programs like 

independent study. 

Teachers should also emphasize the face covering rules regularly to their entire classes.  This may 

include posting signs on the door and/or in the classroom, providing brief verbal reminders upon return 

to in-person instruction and at regular intervals throughout the school year. 

Initial considerations if a student is not wearing a face covering: 

Situation Action to Take 

Student inadvertently 
forgot their face covering. 

Staff member will provide student with access to a face covering and 
remind them of the rule.  Students should not be excluded if they 
simply forgot a face covering.  The school should have ample disposable 
face coverings to provide for free. 

Student is exempt from 
face covering 
requirement. 

Staff member will communicate with an administrator if a student 
asserts they are exempt and the staff member is unaware of the 
exemption.  If the student has not previously asserted an exemption, 
the student must be referred to the District’s process to determine if 
they are eligible for an exemption.   
 
The District will analyze and review whether the student has an IEP, 504 
plan, or some other process that needs to be considered to address a 
face covering exemption. 
 
Confidentiality and Privacy: If a student is exempt from a face covering 
requirement, staff members should not answer questions from other 
students or parents about why the student is not wearing a face 
covering. Rather, the staff member should explain that there are some 
valid reasons why students, generally, could be exempted from wearing 
a face covering and that they cannot comment on the details of a 
particular student’s situation.  In addition, the staff member could add 
that the District does enforce the face covering requirements consistent 
with the law. 
 

Steps to take for intentional refusal to wear a face covering: 

Situation Action to Take 

Step 1. Student 
intentionally refuses to 
wear a face covering.  

In this case, a student should be asked to wear a face covering and 
verbally reminded that it is required to participate in in-person 
instruction. 



Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 
If they refuse, proceed to Step 2. 

Step 2a.  Student 
continues to refuse to 
wear a face covering. 

Student should be sent to the principal’s office for a reminder about the 
face covering requirement. 
 
  

Step 2b. Student 
continues to refuse to 
wear a face covering. 

Student may be approved to sit in a supervised setting outdoors 
without a face covering and participate in class activities through on-site 
virtual learning. Student’s parent/guardian may also be offered 
information about other alternative educational programs like 
independent study. 

Step 3. Student continues 
to refuse to wear a face 
covering or follow 
directions for 
participating in education 
occurring outdoors or 
virtually. 

Student should be sent to the principal’s office and parent/guardian 
contact should be made prior to excluding.  
 
Written notification should be made to parent/guardian that the 
student may be excluded if the student continues to refuse to wear a 
face covering and explain again the offer of other alternative 
educational programs like independent study. 

Step 4. Student continues 
to refuse to wear a face 
covering or follow 
directions for 
participating in education 
occurring outdoors or 
virtually, and declines 
independent study. 

Administrator should exclude student from school that day.   
 
This would require the school site to contact the parents/guardians and 
have the student picked up.   
 
Student should be told they can return to school the next day if they 
comply with the face covering requirement.  Free face coverings should 
be offered. 
 
Written and verbal notice should be given to parent/guardian that face 
coverings are required while indoors at school; that the school provides 
ample free face coverings; that the student may be excluded if they 
continue to refuse to wear a face covering; and provided information 
about other alternative educational opportunities. 
 
This is non-disciplinary and may be modified as necessary.   

Step 5.  Repeat Step 4 until the school site administrator can determine that the student will not 
wear a face covering, participate instead in an alternative educational program, or obtain an 
exemption regardless of their efforts.  At that point, administration will consider whether discipline, 
exclusion, or some other action is required. 

 

Questions or concerns about this process may be directed to the District’s administrative team. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION & REPORTS: 5.3 Report on AB 104: Student Retention 
 
AB 104 contains three major provisions dealing with retention, grading, and graduation policies. The retention portion of AB 
104 has the most potential impact on a K-8 school. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 

 

Assembly Bill 104: Student Retention 
 

On July 1, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill 104 to add Sections 48017, 49066.5, and 51225 to 

the Education Code. The new laws require local educational agencies (including charter schools) to implement 

several remedial provisions to mitigate the hardships of COVID-19 on students. 

The following new requirements are effective immediately: 

 

Requests for Retention 

For the 2021-22 academic year, schools/charter schools must follow the following procedures in response to 

parent/guardian requests for the retention of eligible students: 

 

– Within 30 calendar days of receiving a written retention consultation request from a parent, a school/charter 

school must offer to conduct a consultation with the parent, the student, the administrator, and a teacher. The 

consultation shall include a discussion of all available learning recovery options, research on the effects of 

retention and the benefits of particular interventions and supports, and consideration of the student’s academic 

data and any other information relevant to whether retention is in the student’s best interests, academically and 

socially. 

  

– Within 10 calendar days of the consultation, a school/charter school must notify the requesting parent of its 

retention decision. Regardless of the retention decision, a school/charter school must offer student-specific 

interventions and supports. A pupil who is not retained shall be offered access to prior semester courses in 

which the student received a D or F letter grade in the 2020–21 academic year, some other form of credit 

recovery, or other supports 

  

An “eligible student” is a student who received deficient grades for at least one-half of the student’s coursework 

in the 2020–21 academic year. A deficient grade is a D, F, a No Pass, or an equivalent as determined by the 

school/charter school. A student enrolled in grade 12 during the 2020–21 academic year is not eligible for 

retention under AB 104. 

 



 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION & REPORTS: 5.4: Report on Expanded Learning Opportunities Program 
 
The 2021 California Budget Trailer bill provides $753.1 million in one-time Proposition 98 funding to establish 
the Expanded Learning Opportunities Program to provide students access to after school and summer school or 
intersessional instruction opportunity programs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 

 

Expanded Learning Opportunities Program 
 

 

 

The 2021 California Budget Trailer bill provides $753.1 million in one-time Proposition 98 funding to establish 

the Expanded Learning Opportunities Program to provide students access to after school and summer school or 

intersessional instruction opportunity programs. 

 

 When combined with funds allocated in the Budget Act, it provides a total of $1.75 billion in the 2021–

22 fiscal year.  

 

 The intent is to expand the program to provide up to $2,500 per unduplicated pupil with the total cost, 

conditional on future budget allocations, to reach $5 billion in annual funding.  

 

 

 LEAs would be required to prioritize enrollment at schools in low-income communities, as determined 

by the number of students eligible for free and reduced-price meals, but the bill permits LEAs to serve 

all students and grade levels. 

 

 For the 2022–23 school year, LEAs would be required to provide after-school programs for students in 

TK through sixth grade on school days and 30 non-school summer school or intersessional days, and 

then to any student who requests it by the 2023–24 school year.  

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION & REPORTS: 5.5: Report on Universal Transitional Kindergarten 
 
The Budget Trailer bill outlines a plan to add children in two- or three-month increments over the next few years until all 4-
year-olds are eligible for the program. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 

Universal Transitional Kindergarten 
 

Currently, California, which has almost 3 million children under the age of 5, trails behind other states in terms 

of access to early education, with only 37 percent enrolled in transitional kindergarten and the state’s subsidized 

preschool program. That’s worrisome to early education advocates because research shows that children who 

attend preschool are more likely to take honors classes and less likely to repeat a grade. “California has among 

the largest achievement gaps in the country, and research has shown those gaps are present before children 

enter kindergarten, so it is imperative that we provide high-quality early learning opportunities for kids,” said 

Samantha Tran, senior managing director of education policy at Children Now, an advocacy group. “Those 

options have to be high quality if we are going to have the intended impact and not create greater disparities.” 

 

     Right now transitional kindergarten targets largely those children who narrowly miss the cutoff for 

traditional kindergarten. This Budget Trailer bill outlines a plan to add children in two- or three-month 

increments over the next few years until all 4-year-olds are eligible for the program. Advocates stress that 

for transitional kindergarten to best nurture young minds, it must have small teacher-to-student ratios and a 

developmentally appropriate curriculum as well as before- and after-school services available beyond the 

program’s three instructional hours. The bill provides many of these quality assurances, such as starting with a 

ratio of one adult for every 12 children in the 2022–23 school year and segueing to one adult for every 10 

children by the 2023–24 school year. 

 

 

 



Mr. Ken Horn 
Superintendent/Principal 

ACTION ITEMS 

6.1) Revision to the 2021/2022 Sequoia Union Elementary School District and Charter Budget

The Sequoia Union Elementary School District and Charter Budget which was approved by the Board June 21,2021 

was submitted and reviewed by Tulare County Office of Education. Upon their review they advised that there were 

discrepancies’ between the SACS State software system and the TCOE SACS Financial System. The discrepancies 

were found when an Audit 200 report was generated on behalf of TCOE, the state software ending balances by 

resource and the SACS system ending balances noted several differences. The differences occurred as changes for the 

proposed budget were made in the SACS State Software vs the TCOE SACS Financial System. The correct method 

was to make the changes in the State System and generate beginning balances in the TCOE SACS Financial system to 

be imported into the SACS State Software System. In addition, generating the Audit 200 report would have allowed 

me to capture any error on my end.  

I was asked to review the discrepancies’ and address the differences, revise the budget and return to the Board for 

approval. 

I reached out to Sherri Rocha, Retired External Business Services support for TCOE and she was able to clarify the 

errors and work with me to revise the budget for approval. Throughout our training we noted that there is a deficit 

spending on the District budget for the 20/21 school year and we are not deficit spending in Charter School budget. 

This again is a proposed budget that does not incorporate actual expenditures for the 20/21 school year which we will 

be working on in this next week. The District also notes deficit spending in the 21/22 school year, the Charter does 

not, however with approximate growth we will return our ADA to TCOE to get the correct beginning balances for 

21/22 so both will match by the First Interim.  

 













































































































































































































































































Mr. Ken Horn 
Superintendent/Principal 

ACTION ITEMS 

6.2) Approve Contract for Sherri Rocha –Consultant for Budget and Fiscal Support for the Business Department 

Sherri Rocha, Retired External Business Support from TCOE was sought out due to her extensive knowledge in the 

Business Department. Sherri recently retired from TCOE where she is now also working as consultant for TCOE 

Business Department. Her experience and knowledge of the SACS financial system and the requirements that each 

District meet throughout Tulare County will provide the support needed to allow the Business Manger to gain 

experience and equip her with the proper tools to fulfill her duties in the future. Sherri will work alongside the 

Business Manager receiving 1 on 1 training to fulfill this fiscal year’s Budgeting reporting such as: Proposed 

Budgets, Unaudited Actuals, First Interim, Second Interim etc. She will also be providing the Business Manager 

monthly training as needed. Sherri will fall under professional development/contracting and will be budgeted to train 

no more than two days per month or as needed not exceed $7,000.00 for the 21/22 School Year



 1 

SEQUOIA UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
AND 

SHERRI ROCHA 
CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of July 1, 2021 between the SEQUOIA UNION 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT, referred to as DISTRICT, and SHERRI ROCHA, referred 
to as CONSULTANT, with reference to the following: 
 
 A. DISTRICT requires consulting services in school business and finance. 
 
 B. CONSULTANT represents that she is specially trained, experienced and 
competent in the field of school business, finance, budgeting and, accounting 
 
 C. Government Code section 53060 and Education Code section 35160 
authorize the District to contract with persons who are specially trained and experienced and 
competent to perform special services.  
 
 D. District wishes to hire CONSULTANT as an independent CONSULTANT 
pursuant to the authority of Government Code section 53060 and Education Code section 35160. 
 
 E. Pursuant to Education Code section 45103.1(b)(2), the services contracted 
are not available within the DISTRICT, cannot be performed satisfactorily by school district 
employees, or are of such a highly specialized or technical nature that the necessary expert 
knowledge, experience, and ability are not available through the school district. 
 
ACCORDINGLY, IT IS AGREED: 
 
1. TERM:  This Agreement shall become effective as of July 1, 2021 and shall expire on June 30, 
2022, unless otherwise terminated as provided in this Agreement. 
 
2. SERVICES:  CONSULTANT shall provide services as set forth in Exhibit A, entitled “Scope 
of Services,” which exhibit is made part of this Agreement by reference. 
 
3. COST OF SERVICES:  For services rendered, CONSULTANT shall be paid at the rate of 
$75.00 per hour unless when CONSULTANT is conducting training of district employee, then the 
hourly rate would be of the district employee’s hourly rate.  The DISTRICT agrees to reimburse 
CONSULTANT for all travel costs incurred at the specific request of the DISTRICT in order to 
provide services included in EXHIBIT A. Mileage shall be paid at the current IRS rate. 
 
4. METHOD AND CONDITIONS OF PAYMENT:   
 

a.   CONSULTANT shall provide a monthly invoice for services to DISTRICT.  
DISTRICT shall pay said invoice within 15 days of receipt. DISTRICT shall provide and file IRS 
Form 1099 to report CONSULTANT'S calendar year earnings. 
 

b.   The payment of compensation for work performed is conditioned upon receipt from 
CONSULTANT of any and all plans, specifications and estimates, and other documents prepared 



 2 

by CONSULTANT in accordance with this Agreement.  DISTRICT will not pay anticipated 
profits or other economic loss. 
 
5. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW:  CONSULTANT shall provide services in accordance with 
applicable Federal, State, and local laws, regulations and directives.   
 
6. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT STATUS: 

a. This Agreement is entered into by both parties with the express understanding that 
CONSULTANT will perform all services required under this Agreement as an independent 
contractor.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to constitute the CONSULTANT or any 
of its agents, employees or officers as an agent, employee or officer of DISTRICT. 
 

b. Subject to any performance criteria contained in this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall 
be solely responsible for determining the means and methods of performing the specified services 
and DISTRICT shall have no right to control or exercise any supervision over CONSULTANT as 
to how the services will be performed.  As CONSULTANT is not the DISTRICT'S employee, 
CONSULTANT is responsible for paying all required state and federal taxes.  In particular, 
DISTRICT will not: 
 

i. Withhold FICA (Social Security) from CONSULTANT'S payments. 
ii. Make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on 

CONSULTANT'S behalf. 
iii. Withhold state or federal income tax from payments to CONSULTANT. 
iv. Make disability insurance contributions on behalf of CONSULTANT. 
v. Obtain unemployment compensation insurance on behalf of 

CONSULTANT. 
 

c. Notwithstanding this independent CONSULTANT relationship, DISTRICT shall have 
the right to monitor and evaluate the performance of CONSULTANT to assure compliance with 
this Agreement. 
 
7.  INDEMNIFICATION: 
 CONSULTANT and DISTRICT shall hold each other harmless, defend and indemnify the 
other, its agents, officers and employees from and against any liability, claims, actions, costs, 
damages or losses of any kind, including death or injury to any person and/or damage to any 
property, including District property, arising from, or in connection with, their performance or 
their agents, officers and employees under this Agreement. This indemnification obligation shall 
continue beyond the term of this Agreement as to any acts or omissions occurring under this 
Agreement or any extension of this Agreement. 
 
8. FINGERPRINTING REQUIREMENTS: 

a. Pursuant to California Education Code section 45125.1, before any agents or employees of 
CONSULTANT may enter school grounds where they may have any contact with pupils, 
CONSULTANT shall submit fingerprints of its employees in a manner authorized by the 
California Department of Justice, together with a fee determined by the Department of 
Justice.  CONSULTANT shall not permit any employee to come in contact with pupils of 
the school district until the Department of Justice has ascertained that the 
CONSULTANT’S employees have not been convicted of a felony as defined in Education 



 3 

Code section 45122.1. 
b. CONSULTANT warrants that fingerprints are on file with the Tulare County Office of 

Education.  
 
9. TERMINATION: 

a. The right to terminate this Agreement under this provision may be exercised 
without prejudice to any other right or remedy to which the terminating party may 
be entitled at law or under this Agreement. The agreement may be terminated at any 
time with the mutual consent of the parties. DISTRICT will pay to CONSULTANT 
the compensation earned for work performed and not previously paid for to the date 
of termination. 

 
10. NOTICES: 

a. Except as may be otherwise required by law, any notice to be given shall be written 
and shall be either personally delivered, sent by facsimile transmission or sent by 
first class mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows: 

 
 DISTRICT:       
 Ken Horn       
 Superintendent      
 Sequoia Union Elementary School District 
 23958 Ave. 324 
 Lemon Cove, CA 93244 
  
 Phone No.: 559-564-2106       
  
 CONSULTANT: 
 Sherri Rocha 
  
 
 Phone No.:   
  
 

b. Notice personally delivered is effective when delivered.  Notice sent by facsimile 
transmission is deemed to be received upon successful transmission.  Notice sent 
by first class mail shall be deemed received on the fifth day after the date of 
mailing.  Either party may change the above address or phone or fax number by 
giving written notice pursuant to this paragraph. 

 
 
 



 4 

 THE PARTIES, having read and considered the above provisions, indicate their 
agreement by their authorized signatures below. 
 
     SEQUOIA UNION ELEMENTARYSCHOOL DISTRICT  
 
 
Date:     BY       
      Superintendent 
      “DISTRICT” 
 
 
     SHERRI ROCHA  
 
Date:     BY      
 
      “CONSULTANT” 
 
 



 1 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONSULTANT: 

a. Provide services of the following areas of School Business and Finance: 
 

Budget Development and Monitoring 
Assist district superintendent in development and adoption of the district budget and 
prepare state required budget documents 
Advise district superintendent and/or governing board on impact of state budget  
Monitor for and advise district superintendent on budget to actual variances  
Prepare and input budget revisions under direction of district superintendent  
Perform in-depth budget review prior to First and Second Interim reporting  
Preparation of state required First and Second Interim documents  
Provide training in the above-mentioned area 
 
Payroll  
Assist district in salary settlement disclosure documents for board presentation and 
implementation of the agreement 

 
Accounting  
Assist district staff in year-end closing of financial records including the fixed asset 
accounting system 
Provide training in the year-end closing process 
  
Reporting  
Prepare state required annual financial reports  
Assist district in preparation of GASB 34 required Management Discussion and Analysis 
document  
Prepare and submit data to TCOE required for Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
calculations and assist in preparation of District’s Local Control Accountability Plan ( 
LCAP).  
Assist in categorical programs fiscal reports and student attendance reports 
Provide training as needed 

 
  
Other  
Assist district in clearing audit findings with California Department of Education and 
County Office of Education  
Prepare for and present financial information at governing board meetings as needed  
Research information and prepare documents for district independent auditors  
Attend TCOE business meetings on behalf of the District 
Research and Recommendations for resolution of complex accounting and budgeting 
issues 
 

 



 2 

 
b. Attend all meetings scheduled by DISTRICT to implement the provisions of this 

Agreement. 
 

c. Prepare and submit all required reports and data required by DISTRICT 
 

2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DISTRICT: 
a. Provide access to financial records, electronic and printed, as required by 

CONSULTANT. 
 
b. Provide access to the Tulare County Office of Education SACS Financial System 

as needed by CONSULTANT 
 

c. Provide access to staff for assistance in research and resolution of complex 
accounting and budgeting issues 

 



Mr. Ken Horn 
Superintendent/Principal 

ACTION ITEMS 

6.2) Approve the 2019/2020 Outstanding Credit Card Statement

The outstanding Bank of the Sierra Credit Card Statement in the amount of $1,020.55 are transactions that were 

made in the 2019/2020 School Year and now also include late fees. The  process for  TCOE to  approve Credit Card 

expenditure payments, a School District is required to submit a  hard copy of transaction receipts. As new 

administration came in, there was a long drawn out process to close the account and return hard copy 

signatures and applications to gain access to the Credit Card Statements.  After gaining access to the Credit Card 

transactions and aligning them with the SACS report vendor payment history, it is noted that transactions in the 

months of April 2020 and May 2020 were unaccounted for and the Business Manager moved forward to submit 

payment through our vendor payments submitted on a weekly basis.  Sara Smigiera with TCOE advised that it 

would be best to have the payment Board approved as there is no documentation of purchases and  using the 

transaction forms and SACS report vendor payment history, this will allow the outstanding balance to be paid in full 

to our vendor Bank of the Sierra  



































 

 

 

 

ACTION ITEM: 6.4 Approve Waiving the normal policy of 3 reads in order to approve an emergency 
Board Policy Change 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

ACTION ITEMS: 6.4: Approve Waiving the normal policy of 3 reads in order to approve an emergency 
Board Policy Change. 
 
The Board Policy change on Board Policy 6158 regarding Independent Study for the 2021-2022 school year must be 
adopted prior to the first day of school, so the normal waiting period of doing three reads would need to be waived in order 
for this Board Policy change to be put in place in time for the first day of school. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: 7.1: Public Hearing on Board Policy 6158.1 and Administrative Regulation 6158.1 
(Independent Study)  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

Instruction          BP 6158.1 

INDEPENDENT STUDY TO IMPLEMENT ASSEMBLY BILL 130 (2021) 

 

The Board of Trustees has previously authorized independent study as an optional alternative 

instructional strategy for eligible students whose needs may be best met through study outside of 

the regular classroom setting. With the enactment of Assembly Bill No. 130 (Ch. 44, Stats. 2021, 

hereafter “AB 130”), school districts and county offices of education are required to offer 

independent study for the 2021-2022 school year, with limited exceptions. 

 

(cf. 6158 – Independent Study)  

 

Education Code section 51747, as it read prior to July 8, 2021, provided that a local educational 

agency shall not be eligible to receive apportionments for independent study unless it has 

adopted and implemented written policies as specified in that statute. AB 130 continues the 

requirement for local educational agencies to adopt and implement written policies, and adds 

additional content required to be included in such policies. This policy is intended to supplement 

Board Policy (BP) and Administrative Regulation (AR) 6158 to include the additional 

requirements of AB 130. To the extent that there is any conflict between this policy and BP and 

AR 6158, the provisions of this policy shall govern. 

 

The District shall comply with the requirements of AB 130 by either providing an independent 

study option to all students or contracting with the Tulare County Office of Education or through 

an interdistrict transfer agreement with another school district to provide independent study to 

students. 

 

The Administration shall adopt Regulations implementing this policy in compliance with AB 

130. 

 

Legal Reference: 

 Assembly Bill No. 130 (Ch. 44, Stats. 2021) 

EDUCATION CODE 

 51745-51749.6  Independent study programs 

  

Policy adopted: July 22, 2021        SEQUOIA UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Lemon Cove, California 



 

 

Instruction          AR 6158.1 

INDEPENDENT STUDY TO IMPLEMENT ASSEMBLY BILL 130 (2021) 

 

The Board of Trustees has adopted a policy to implement the requirements of AB 130. With the 

enactment of Assembly Bill No. 130 (Ch. 44, Stats. 2021, hereafter “AB 130”), school districts 

and county offices of education are required to offer independent study for the 2021-2022 school 

year, with limited exceptions.  

 

This Regulation is intended to implement the additional requirements of AB 130. To the extent 

that there is any conflict between this Regulation and AR 6158, the provisions of this Regulation 

shall govern. 

1. Monitoring Student Progress 

In addition to the number of missed assignments permitted by BP 6158 or AR 6158 before an 

evaluation is conducted to determine whether it is in the best interests of a pupil to remain in 

independent study, or whether the pupil should return to the regular school program, the pupil’s 

level of satisfactory progress shall be considered. Satisfactory educational progress shall be 

determined based on all of the following indicators: 

 

(A) The pupil’s achievement and engagement in the independent study program, as indicated by 

the pupil’s performance on applicable pupil-level measures of pupil achievement and pupil 

engagement, including but not limited to the student’s attendance and absenteeism.   

 

(B) The completion of assignments, assessments, or other indicators that evidence that the pupil 

is working on assignments. 

 

(C) Learning required concepts, as determined by the supervising teacher. 

 

(D) Progressing toward successful completion of the course of study or individual course, as 

determined by the supervising teacher. 

2. Content Standards 

The provision of content aligned to grade level standards that is provided to pupils in the 

independent study program shall be at a level of quality and intellectual challenge substantially 

equivalent to in-person instruction.  

3. Re-engagement Strategies 

The District will take measures to re-engage pupils who are not generating attendance for more 

than three schooldays or 60 percent of the instructional days in a school week, or who are in 

violation of their written agreement pursuant to Education Code section 51747, subdivision (g), 

BP/AR 6158, and this policy. Procedures for tiered reengagement strategies shall include all of 

the following: 



 

 

 

(A) Verification of the pupil’s current contact information. 

 

(B) Notification to parents or guardians of lack of participation within one school day of the 

absence or lack of participation. 

 

(C) A plan for outreach to determine pupil needs, including connection with health and social 

services as necessary. 

 

(D) A clear standard for requiring a pupil-parent-educator conference to review a pupil’s written 

agreement and reconsider the independent study program’s impact on the pupil’s achievement 

and well-being, consistent with the provisions of BP/AR 6158 and this policy regarding missed 

assignments and satisfactory educational progress. 

“Pupil-parent-educator conference” means a meeting involving, at a minimum, all parties who 

signed the pupil’s written independent study agreement pursuant to subdivision (g) of Section 

51747 or the written learning agreement pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 51749.6. 

This section shall not apply to pupils that participate in an independent study program for fewer 

than 15 schooldays in a school year. 

 

4. Instructional Delivery Methods 

 

Instruction shall be provided to all pupils in the independent study program in accordance with 

the pupil’s written agreement, and shall include the following: 

 

(A) For pupils in transitional kindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 1 to 3, inclusive, daily 

synchronous instruction shall be provided for all pupils throughout the school year. 

 

(B) Pupils in grades 4 to 8, inclusive, will be provided opportunities for both daily live 

interaction and at least weekly synchronous instruction for all pupils throughout the school year. 

“Live interaction” means interaction between the pupil and District classified or certificated 

staff, and may include peers, provided for the purpose of maintaining school connectedness, 

including, but not limited to, wellness checks, progress monitoring, provision of services, and 

instruction. This interaction may take place in person, or in the form of internet or telephonic 

communication. 

“Synchronous instruction” means classroom-style instruction or designated small group or one-

on-one instruction delivered in person, or in the form of internet or telephonic communications, 

and involving live two-way communication between the teacher and pupil. Synchronous 

instruction shall be provided by the teacher of record for that pupil pursuant to Education Code 

Section 51747.5. 

 



 

 

This section shall not apply to pupils that participate in an independent study program for fewer 

than 15 schooldays in a school year. 

 

5. Returning to In-Person Instruction 

 

Pupils whose families wish to return to in-person instruction from independent study may notify 

the designated contact person, as set forth in the pupil’s written agreement. Upon notice from the 

pupil’s family that a return to in-person instruction is desired, the Independent Study 

Administrator shall provide for the pupil’s return to the school of the pupil’s previous in-person 

attendance, or such other school as is appropriate for the pupil’s grade level and place of 

residence, no later than five instructional days after the request is received. 

 

This section shall not apply to pupils that participate in an independent study program for fewer 

than 15 schooldays in a school year. 

 

6. Master Agreement 

 

Each pupil’s written agreement for independent study shall include, in addition to those 

provisions required by BP/AR 6158 the following: 

 

(A) The manner, time, frequency, and place for reporting the pupil’s academic progress, and for 

communicating with a pupil’s parent or guardian regarding the pupil’s academic progress. 

 

(B) The specific resources, including materials and personnel, that will be made available to the 

pupil. These resources shall include confirming or providing access to all pupils to the 

connectivity and devices adequate to participate in the educational program and complete 

assigned work. 

 

(C) A statement of the level of satisfactory educational progress allowed before an evaluation of 

whether or not the pupil should be allowed to continue in independent study. 

 

(D) A statement detailing the academic and other supports that will be provided to address the 

needs of pupils who are not performing at grade level, or need support in other areas, such as 

English learners, individuals with exceptional needs in order to be consistent with the pupil’s 

individualized education program or plan pursuant to Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation 

Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Sec. 794), pupils in foster care or experiencing homelessness, and pupils 

requiring mental health supports. 

 

Signed written agreements, supplemental agreements, assignment records, work samples, and 

attendance records assessing time value of work or evidence that an instructional activity 

occurred may be maintained as an electronic file.  An electronic file includes a computer or 

electronic stored image of an original document, including, but not limited to, portable document 

format, JPEG, or other digital image file type, that may be sent via fax machine, email, or other 



 

 

electronic means.  Either an original document or an electronic file of the original document is 

allowable for auditing purposes. 

 

Written agreements may be signed using an electronic signature that complies with state and 

federal standards that may be a marking that is either computer generated or produced by 

electronic means and is intended by the signatory to have the same effect as a handwritten 

signature. The use of an electronic signature shall have the same force and effect as the use of a 

manual signature if the requirements for digital signatures and their acceptable technology, as 

provided in Section 16.5 of the Government Code and in Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 

22000) of Division 7 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are satisfied. 

 

For the 2021–22 school year only, the District shall obtain a signed written agreement for 

independent study from the pupil, or the pupil’s parent or legal guardian if the pupil is less than 

18 years of age, the certificated employee who has been designated as having responsibility for 

the general supervision of independent study, and all persons who have direct responsibility for 

providing assistance to the pupil no later than 30 days after the first day of instruction.  

 

7. Independent Study Enrollment and Notice 

 

For the 2021–22 school year only, the District shall notify the parents and guardians of all 

enrolled pupils of their options to enroll their child in in-person instruction or independent study 

during the 2021–22 school year. This notice shall include written information on the District’s 

internet website, including, but not limited to, the right to request a pupil-parent-educator 

conference meeting before enrollment pursuant to this section, pupil rights regarding procedures 

for enrolling, disenrolling, and reenrolling in independent study, and the synchronous and 

asynchronous instructional time that a pupil will have access to as part of independent study.  

 

[NOTE: If 15 percent or more of the pupils enrolled in a local educational agency that provides 

instruction in transitional kindergarten, kindergarten, or any of grades 1 to 12, inclusive, speak a 

single primary language other than English, as determined from the census data submitted to the 

department pursuant to Section 52164 in the preceding year, the written information shall, in 

addition to being written in English, be written in the primary language.] 

 

Upon the request of the parent or guardian of a pupil, and before signing a written agreement 

with the pupil’s parent or guardian, the District shall conduct a phone, videoconference, or in-

person pupil-parent-educator conference or other school meeting during which the pupil, parent 

or guardian, and, if requested by the pupil or parent, an education advocate, may ask questions 

about the educational options, including which curriculum offerings and nonacademic supports 

will be available to the pupil in independent study, before making the decision about enrollment 

or disenrollment in the various options for learning. 

 

Legal Reference: 

 Assembly Bill No. 130 (Ch. 44, Stats. 2021) 



 

 

EDUCATION CODE 

 51745-51749.6  Independent study programs 

  

Regulation adopted: July 22, 2021 

       SEQUOIA UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Lemon Cove, California 

 

 
 



July 15, 2021 

Dear County and District Superintendents and Charter School Administrators: 

Changes to Independent Study Requirements 

Governor Gavin Newsom signed Assembly Bill (AB) 130 into law on July 9, 2021. This 
bill makes changes to independent study (IS). Some of the changes apply to all local 
educational agencies (LEAs), and some apply only to school districts and county offices 
of education (COEs). Although this communication is not inclusive of all of the changes 
to IS, it highlights several of the more pressing new elements for the 2021–22 school 
year that LEAs need to be aware of before IS instruction begins. These include IS 
offering requirements, a provision for waivers of the offering requirements, as well as 
required parent notification, pupil-parent-educator conferences, and additions to board 
policies and written agreements. In the coming weeks the California Department of 
Education (CDE) will issue additional guidance in the form of frequently asked questions 
and webinars about the new IS requirements. 

Independent Study Offering and Waiver Requirements 

For the 2021–22 school year only, school districts and COEs are required to offer IS as 
an educational option (Education Code [EC] Section 51745). This requirement does not 
apply to charter schools. 

School districts may choose to contract with a COE or establish an interdistrict transfer 
agreement with another school district to meet the requirement of offering IS for the
2021–22 school year. If the district demonstrates that the requirement creates an 
“unreasonable fiscal burden,” and entering into an interdistrict transfer agreement or 
contract is not a viable option, the requirement to offer IS can be waived for a school 
district by the COE, and for a COE or school district in a single district county by the 
CDE. 

In addition, AB 130 adds EC Section 46393 which requires all LEAs to include a plan for 
offering IS to pupils affected by school closures, along with the affidavit completed in 
submitting a Request for Allowance of Attendance Due to Emergency Conditions, Form 
J-13A. This requirement applies to all requests due to events that occur after September
1, 2021, and is not limited to the 2021–22 school year.



July 15, 2021 
Page 2 

Parent Notification 

In order to communicate the educational options for families and their pupils in the 
2021–22 school year, AB 130 has a requirement that school districts and COEs notify 
parents and guardians of their options to enroll their pupil in in-person instruction or IS 
during the 2021–22 school year (EC Section 51747). This notice shall include written 
information on the LEA’s internet website, including, but not limited to, the right to 
request a pupil-parent-educator conference meeting prior to enrollment, pupil rights 
regarding procedures for enrolling, disenrolling, and reenrolling in IS, and the 
synchronous and asynchronous instructional time that a pupil will have access to as 
part of IS. 

Pupil-Parent-Educator Conferences 

Prior to signing the IS written agreement for IS, and at a pupil or parent or guardian’s 
request, all LEAs offering IS must hold a pupil-parent-educator conference or school 
meeting via phone, videoconference, or in-person (EC Section 51747). At a minimum 
this conference or meeting must involve all of the people who sign the pupil’s written 
agreement for IS. During the conference or school meeting, attendees may ask 
questions about the educational options, curriculum offerings, and nonacademic 
supports available to the pupil. 

Updated Board Policies and Written Agreements 

In order to generate apportionment for IS, all LEAs must have adopted and 
implemented board policies and written agreements that meet specific criteria (EC 
Section 51747). AB 130 added new elements to be included in board policies and 
written agreements. 

In addition to requirements in effect prior to the enactment of AB 130, board policies 
need to be updated to also include the following: 

• Satisfactory progress as an added means to evaluate continued IS
participation and placement.

• Provision of standards aligned content in IS that is substantially equivalent to
the quality and intellectual challenge of in-person instruction.

• For high schools, a provision for access to all courses offered by the LEA for
graduation and approved by the University of California or the California State
University as creditable under the A–G admissions criteria.

• Procedures for tiered reengagement strategies.



July 15, 2021 
Page 3 

• A plan to provide opportunities for synchronous instruction for all grade levels,
and live interaction for grades four through eight.

• A plan to transition pupils whose families wish to return to in-person
instruction from IS expeditiously, and not later than five instructional days.

Written agreements must be updated to also include the following: 

• The manner, time, frequency, and place for communicating with a pupil’s
parent or guardian regarding academic progress.

• The inclusion of confirming or providing access to all pupils to the connectivity
and devices adequate for participation and completion of work in the specific
resources made available to the pupil.

• The level of satisfactory educational progress that would trigger an evaluation
of whether or not the pupil should be allowed to continue in IS.

• A detailed statement of academic and other supports provided to address the
needs of pupils not performing at grade level, or needed support in other
areas such as English learners, individuals with exceptional needs in order to
be consistent with the pupil’s individualized education program or 504 plan,
pupils in foster care, pupils experiencing homelessness, and pupils requiring
mental health supports.

• A provision for electronic signatures if a LEA chooses to make use of
electronic signatures for written agreements.

For the 2021–22 school year only, written agreements must be signed no later than 30 
days after the first day of instruction. However, it is important to note that all other IS 
requirements must be met upon commencement of instruction. For any other school 
year, written agreements must be signed prior to commencement of IS. 

The CDE understands that these changes will require time and planning on the part of 
LEAs. This initial communication with the most significant and time sensitive tasks is 
being provided to help LEAs with this work. As noted earlier, the CDE in the coming 
weeks will continue to issue guidance to help LEAs with understanding these new 
requirements. 

LEAs interested in receiving regular email updates pertaining to IS may join the CDE IS 
listserv located at https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/eo/is/indstudylistserv.asp. 

If you have any questions regarding this subject, please contact the following CDE staff 
accordingly. 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/eo/is/indstudylistserv.asp


July 15, 2021 
Page 4 

• For questions regarding the implementation of an IS Program, please contact
independentstudy@cde.ca.gov.

• For questions regarding meeting attendance accounting, apportionment, and
instructional time requirements in implementing the IS provisions of AB 130,
please contact attendanceaccounting@cde.ca.gov.

Your hard work and efforts on behalf of pupils and families are very much appreciated. 

Sincerely, 

Lisa Borrego 
Division Director 
Family Engagement Division 

LB/WM:eg

Wendi McCaskill
Associate Director
School Fiscal Services Division 

mailto:independentstudy@cde.ca.gov
mailto:attendanceaccounting@cde.ca.gov


 

 

 

 

ACTION ITEMS: 8.1: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Adoption of Revised Board Policy 6158.1 
and Administrative Regulation 6158.1 
 

 The New Long Term Independent Study requirements are for students who 
will be on Independent Study for16 days or longer. 

 Satisfactory progress for a student as an added means to evaluate continued 
IS participation and placement. 

 Provision of standards aligned content in IS that is substantially equivalent to 
the quality and intellectual challenge of in-person instruction. 

 Procedures for tiered reengagement strategies for students. 

 A plan to provide opportunities for synchronous instruction for all grade levels, 
and live interaction for grades four through eight. 

 A plan to transition pupils whose families wish to return to in-person 
instruction from IS expeditiously, and not later than five instructional days. 

(At Sequoia Union we will use Edgenuity to contract for Independent Study 
with Edgenuity curriculum content that meets State Standard requirements 
and Edgenuity Credentialed Teachers to provide the instruction. On Friday, 
they added to the clarification and we now have to have one of our own 
certificated staff members do the Zoom meetings for no more than 25 
students. We ended the school year with only 15 students on Distance 
Learning and my guess is that we will have less than 15 that will want to do 
long term Independent Study). 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

ACTION ITEMS: 8.1: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Adoption of Revised Board Policy 6158.1 
and Administrative Regulation 6158.1 
 
Motion to Approve Revised Board Policy 6158.1 and Administrative Regulation 6158.1. 

Motion made by: 

Motion seconded by: 

Aye: 

Nay: 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

ORGANIZATIONAL BUSINESS: 9.1 Consideration of Agenda Items the Board Wishes to Discuss in 
Future Meetings 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION: 10.1 GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957.6: CONFERENCE WITH LABOR 
NEGOTIATOR AGENCY REPRESENTATIVE: District’s Legal Counsel. EMPLOYEE 
ORGANIZATION: S.E.T.A.. UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES: Sequoia Union Classified Staff. 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

ACTION ITEMS: 11.1 Action to Approve Public Statement Regarding Face Mask Mandate 
 
 
 
 

 

 


	UPDATED July 22, 2021 Special Board Meeting Agenda
	5.1 Cover Page
	5.1 CA Dept of Public Health Update
	5.2 Cover Page
	5.2 Face Mask Protocols
	5.3 Cover Page
	5.3 Report on AB104 Student Retention
	5.4 Cover Page
	5.4 Report on Expanded Learning Opportunities Program
	5.5 Cover Page
	5.5 Universal Transitional Kindergarten
	6.1 Cover Page
	6.1 Revised Proposed Budget 21.22 Updated
	21.22 Part1
	21.22 Part2

	6.2 Cover Page
	6.2 Consultant Sherri Rocha
	6.3 Cover Page
	6.3 Bank of the Sierra Credit Card
	6.4  Cover Page
	6.4 3 Reads
	7.1 Cover Page
	7.1 BP 6158.1
	7.1 AR 6158.1
	7.1 AB 130
	8.1 Cover Page
	8.1 Motion Page
	9.1 Cover Page
	10.1 Cover Page
	11.1 Cover Page



